
United Nations u· ~ 

~-·~ i\ ~~, ~~ L' •... ~ iff ~'-'-' ) 

' , . 
L., GENERAL 

ASSEMBLY 
THIRTY-THIRD SESSION 

Officwl Records* 

~ 

l r".'/.~ 
~· " \,,· ~ ...... '· 

FIFTH COHMITTEE 
41st meeting 

held on 
.November 1978 
at 10.30 a.m. 

• (;_ J;:r:~d~y' 24 
.., .... 4·> .,·.,__,~ ( i: ,._ [ '~ 

New York 

SUMHARY RECORD OF THE 41st j,ffiETING 

Chairman: !1r. KOBINA SEKYI (Ghana) 

later: Mr. HARVILLE (Barbados) 

Chairman of the Advisory Committee on Administrative and 
Budgetary Questions: ~1r. i1SELLE 

C0~1'ENTS 

AGENDA ITEM 112: UNITED NATIONS PENSION SYSTEM (continued) 

(a) REPORT OF THE U:i:UTED NATIONS JOINT STAFF PENSION BOARD (continued) 

AGENDA ITEM 111: REPORT OF THE INTERNATIONAL CIVIL SEHVICE COi'1HISSION (continued) 

AGENDA ITEM 100: PROGRAJ.'ll1E BUDGET FOR THE BIENNIW-1 1978-1979 (continued) 

Revised estimates under sections 26 B &~d C. Alteration, improvements and 
major maintenance of premises, United Nations Office at Geneva (continued) 

• This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be incorporated in a copy of 
the record and should be sent within one week of the date of publication to the Chief, 
Official Records Editing Section, room A·3550. 

Corrections will be issued shortly after the end of the session, in a separate fascicle for 
each Committee. 

78-58733 

Distr. GENERAL 
A/C.5/33/SR.41 
5 December 1978 
ENGLISH 
ORIGINAL: FRENCH 

I . .. 



A/C.5/33/SR.41 
Ene:lish 
Page 2 

AGENDA ITEI1 112: UlHTED NA'i'IONS PENSION SYSTEY1 (continued) 

(a) REPORT OF THE UNITED NATIONS JOINT STAFF PENSION BOARD (continued) (A/33/9 
und Ad~.l and Corr.l, f/33/375· A/C.5/33/48) 

l. Mr. HAJOLI (Italy) said that the proposals for a revised pension adjustment 
system submitted by the Joint Staff Pension Board in its report (A/33/9) stemmed 
from General .Assembly resolution 31/196, which had called on the Board to submit 
to the Assembly at its thirty-third session specific recommendations for a unified 
scheme which would rnc:et the needs of pensioners 1-rhile not entailing any increase 
in the financial liabilities of Hember States. 

2. The need to preserve the purchasing povrer of pensions received by retired 
staff members had, of course, become more pressing in recent years ouing to 
inflation and unpredictable fluctuations in the rates of exchange bebreen the 
dollar anrl other currencies. The unified scheme proposed by the Pension Board ln 
parae;raphs 29 to 39 of its renort anrl described in detail in annex V seemed to be 
a per:fe~t solution, particula~ly since the Pension Board indicated in paragraphs 40 
to 46 that it -vrould be less costly than the existing dual scheme. That conclusion 
was confirmed by the Advisory Committee, vhich stated in paragraph 25 of its 
report (A/33/375) that the proposed schemE' 1-rould satisfy the requirement laid dovm 
by the General Assembly that a new scheme should not require any increase in the 
current or future financial liabilities of Member States. 

3. The proposed scheme vent beyond merely protecting the purchasing pow·er of 
pensions against inflation and currency fluctuations in the country of residence 
of pensioners. The shift from a 12-rnonth to a 36-rnonth period for calculating the 
average exchange rate used to convert the initial dollar pension into the currency 
of the pensioner 1 s country of residence made substantial adjustments in the value 
of the initial pension possible in many cases. Thus, within the established cost 
constraints, the scheme was in keeping ~.Jith the General Assembly's call for limited 
recognition of the principle of compensation falling short of equality of 
purchasing power. The effects of that aspect of the scheme were clearly 
illustrated in the examples rwovided in the table contained in annex I to the 
Advisory Committee 1 s report. 

4. In paragraph 26 of its report • the Advisory Committee recommended the approval 
of the Board's reconrnendations. His delegation was prepared to go along vi th the 
Advisory Committee's recommendation, provided, of course, that the scheme was 
reviewed vhen some experience had been gained and when the Assembly had considered 
the conclusions of the joint study of the question of pensionable remuneration to 
be carried out by the Pension Doard and the International Civil Service Commission. 
The joint study should carefully assess each proposal not only in the light of the 
interests of existing and future pensioners but also in the light of the financial 
irr,plications for the Pension Fund and for Hernber States. Increased pew3ionable 
remuneration Hould mean not only higher contribution costs for Member States but 
also a reduction in the take-horne pay of staff members. The staff 1vould presumably 

I ... 



A/C.5/33/SR.41 
English 
Page 3 

(Hr. Ma,ioli, Italy) 

favour the striking of an equitable balance between the level of their 
contributions and the benefits they subsequently received, irrespective of their 
duty station during active service or the place in 1-1hich they eventually retired. 
His delegation therefore looked forward ·Hith interest to the reports on that 
subject which were to be submitted at the following session. 

5. In paragraphs 47 to 60 of its report (A/33/9), the Joint Staff Pension Board 
proposed three changes in the pension system which 1vould further increase by 
~39 million the actuarial imbalance of the Fund. That imbalance had, in fact, 
increased from $116 million at the end of 1974 to 0211 million at the end of 1976. 
The Advisory Committee concluded, in paragraph 31 of its report, that the extra 
liability could not be offset by savings of ¢30 million resulting from the use of 
a higher rate of interest for the calculation of lump-sum benefits. His delegation 
shared the Advisory Committee's view that the thTee proposed changes should not 
be accepted. As soon as the actuarial situation of the Fund permitted, priority 
should be given to the proposed change uhich affected participants who separated 
from service before reaching the age of 55 and opted for a deferred pension. That 
reform would be far less costly than the other two, as was shown by the figures 
provided in paragraph 28 of the Advisory Committee's report. It might also 
encourage participants to separate from service before reaching the age of 55, thus 
making it possible to bring younger staff members into the ranks of the Secretariat. 

6. With regard to the Fund's investments, dealt with in paragraphs 77 to 81 of 
the Board's report, his delegation reiterated the statement it had made on that 
matter on 8 November 1977 (A/C.5/32/SR.36). The views it had expressed at that 
time remained valid in view of the economic and currency developments of recent 
months. 

7. His delegation 1vould vote in favour of the amended draft resolution appearing 
in annex II to the Advisory Committee's report, if it was put to a vote. 

8. lllr. SCHMIDT (Federal Republic of Germany) said it 1vas fitting that the 
Committee was considering the reports of the United Nations Joint Staff Pension 
Board (A/33/9) and the International Civil Service Commission (A/33/30) at roufhly 
the same time. TI1e recommendations of both bodies were intended primarily to 
mitieate the effects of exchange rate fluctuations. As far as salaries were 
concerned, the complaints of Professional staff in Geneva did not seem justified,. 
whereas they did indeed have urgent pension problems to which the Joint Staff 
Pension Board and ICSC had decided to give priority. 'l'he chief problem continued 
to be country-to-country differences in purchasing povrer, which were not fully 
reflected in the exchange rate relationship. Hhere salaries ••ere concerned, it was 
possible, through the post adjustment system, to compensate, and in some cases even 
overcompensate, for such differences. \-lith regard to pensions, consideration might 
be given to the possibility of incorporating post adjustment into pensionable 
remuneration, but that 1vould only serve to perpetuate the overcompensation ;-1hich 
had already become evident in respect of salaries. The solution was to provide for 
only limited compensation for country-to-country differences in the cost of living, 
as the General Assembly had stated in resolution 31/196. 

I . .. 



A/C.5/33/SR.41 
English 
Page 4 

(IIr. Schmidt, Federal Jepublic 
~erlriall:V) --- ----- -

9. I'1odifying pensionable rt:muneration by means of an adjustment system was only 
one vay of meeting the wishes of the General Assembly. lioreover, it might result 
in a number of anomalies: a staff member Hho -vrorked in Bangkok and retired in 
Geneva, for example, might very well pay lm.rer contributions but receive higher 
benefits than a staff member 1rho Harked in Geneva and retired in Bangkok. Facile 
solutions should therefore be avoided, and it should not be forgotten that the 
amount of the contributions paid by staff members, as well as the contributions 
paid by I·Iember States, should also be taken into account. It should be possible 
to find a way to reconcile the interests of all concerned. Consideration might 
perhaps be given to limiting the choice of country of residence on retirement, 
for instance, by allowing a staff member to choose only the country in which he 
took his home leave. 

10. His delegation had submitted a draft resolution on the problem in 1973 and 
the Board had subsequently suggested a system which was to be further improved in 
the current year. 'Jlhe neH system under study "\Tas admittedly not ideal, as the 
Chairman of the Advisory Committee had said, but it did seem to take account of 
the needs of all concerned and, above all, to maintain the principle of equality 
of benefits. The reports before the Committee analysed the advantages, but it 
should also be pointed out that the proposed system represented an advance not 
only for staff who retired to hard-currency countries but also for those who 
retired to countries vrhose currency "I•Tas lih:ely to depreciate in relation to the 
dollar. It would therefore reassure retired staff who w·ere fearful of opting for 
the formula based on the consumer price index (CPI) in case the currency of the 
country vhere they resided lost its value. That 1-ras certainly the most welcome 
improvement introduced by the nevr system. 

11. In paragraph 24 of its report (A/33/375), the Advisory Committee dealt 1.rith 
a problem vvhich the Board had left pending, namely, the consequences of the choice 
of date for the implementation of the supplementary measures set out in 
paragraphs 29 and 30 of annex V to the Board's report. His delegation obviously 
endorsed the measures in question, but he pointed out that staff members who 
retired during 1978 would be at the mercy of possible exchange-rate losses until 
1 January 1979. It 1rould be fairer if the measures to guarantee a minimum pension 
also applied to the year 1978. According to the Advisory Coil'llllittee, the estimated 
additional cost to the Fund in actuarial lump-sum terms vrould be between 1 million 
and 2 million dollars and would not exceed the financial limits set by the General 
Assembly. 

12. His delegation therefore proposed the follovring addition to part I of the 
amended draft resolution contained in annex II to the Advisory Committee's report: 

nDecides further to extend the application of the supplementary measures 
contained in paragraphs 33 and 34 of the report of the United Nations Joint 
Staff Pension Board and in paragraphs 29 and 30 of annex V thereto to 
beneficiaries -vrhose entitlements began at any time during the current 
year 1978. 17 

13. His Government a~reed uith the Advisory Committee (paras. 27 to 31 of its 
report) that it uould be untimely to approve the three changes in the benefit 
system proposed by the Board. 'rhe actuarial imbalance of the Fund precluded any 
decisions of that nature unless additions.l financing \vas to be provided. 



A/C.5/33/SR.41 
English 
Page 5 

14. Mr. GARRIDO (Philippines) said that his delegation considered the compromise 
formula for the revised pension adjustment plan which the Board had adopted by 
consensus to be the most important aspect of the item under consideration. As the 
Board's report (A/33/9) indicated, the unified system was based on the principle 
that a benefit payable by the Pension Fund should never be allowed to fall below 
the value of its statutory dollar amount, while at the same time preserving its 
purchasin~ power as initally established in the currency of the recipient's country 
of residence. Should the new system be approved by the General Assembly, on 
1 January 1979 beneficiaries would be entitled to the local currency equivalent of 
the dollar amount of their former v.TAPA pension, or their local currency entitlement 
(in other vrords, the former CPI pension) duly adjusted on a quarterly basis, 
whichever was the greater. 

15. Since the unified system would benefit both Professional and General Service 
staff it ivauld eliminate the anomalies under the former system. To compensate for 
country-to-country differences in purchasing power, mainly in countries where the 
United States dollar was falling against stronger currencies, once the pension had 
been established in local currency, pensioners would benefit from a three-year 
average of the exchanp,e rate or the spot rate of exchange, whichever was the 
greater, in addition to the adjustment of the pension to movements in the consumer 
price index applicable in each country. 

16. The supplementary measures described in paragraphs 29 to 30 of annex V to the 
Board's report would ensure that the initial pension on the participant's date of 
separation from service would not be less than the amount which would have been 
applicable on 1 January 1978. It was his delegation's understanding that those 
measures would be applicable to future pensioners, contrary to what had been 
proposed by the delegation of the Federal Republic of Germany. Furthermore, the 
transitional measures would ensure that no pension would be reduced on transfer to 
the revised system. In other words, the base to which adjustments would be applied 
from 1 January 1979 should not be lower than the amount of the pension on 
31 December 1978. 

17. The cost of the new scheme was less than that of the WAPA/CPI system, thus 
fulfilling one of the main requirements of General Assembly resolution 31/196 that 
no increase in the present or future liabilities of Member States should be 
required. In calculating the actuarial value of the adjustment scheme, an increase 
at a given rate during the dynamic period of valuation was assumed. 

18. 'Ihf:' new scheme vas admittedly not perfect, but if offered an equitable 
solution to the problem of protecting the purchasing power of pensions. Moreover, 
it could be re-examined in the light of the recommendations of ICSC following the 
joint study which ICSC was to make with the Joint Staff Pension Board on the 
question of pensionable remuneration. 

19. With regard to the maximum length of contributory service to be taken into 
account in calculating the rate of accumulation of benefits, it would be equitable 
and logical to give credit for all the years of contributory service without 
imposing a maximum. In 1976, the General Assembly had decided to extend the maximum 
length of contributory service from 30 to 32 years on a provisional basis and it 
was currently proposed that the rate of accumulation should be increased from 
1 to 2 per cent of final average remuneration for the additional two years. Since 



A/C.5/33/SR.41 
English 
Page 6 

(l:Jr. Garrido, Philippines) 

the maximum limit for United Nations staff Has lm.rer than the maximum contributory 
service for national civil servants, it "l·rould be justifiable to apply a 2 per cent 
rate of accumulation. 

20. Similarly, his dele~ation endorsed the recommendation of the Board that the 
benefit should be reduced actuarily by 1 per cent for every year below the age 
of Go for those who took early retirement bet"l·reen 55 and 60 years of age. In the 
interests of consistency, a change should also be made for participants who took 
early retirement before 55 and opted for a deferred benefit, an actuarial reduction 
of 2 per cent being made for those who had accumulated at least 25 years of 
contributory service, and 1 per cent r'or those i·rith at least 30 years' service. 

21. Such changes in the benefit system 1rould entail liberalization of benefits 
contrary to the advice which the Committee of Actuaries had given the Advisory 
Conm1ittee, but those measures merely constituted corrective action and he believed 
that the cost implications, Hhich should be modest, could be offset by savings 
resultin~ from a change in the interest rate used for the calculation of lump-sum 
benefits. 

22. His deleGation agreed with the Board that the interest rate should be 
4.25 per cent instead of 3.25 per cent, so that neither the participant nor the 
Fund suffered when the participant decided to convert part of his pension into a 
lump sum. I1oreover, that chan(!;e HOuld save the Fund the actuarial equivalent of 
$30 million, as the Consulting Actuary had told the Board. 

23. His delegation endorsed the agreement between the Fund and the Canadian 
Government on the transfer of pension rights, and had no objection to the 
continuation of the Emergency Fund. 

24. His delegation concurred 1-rith the original proposals of the Board regarding 
administrative e~;enses, which were still less than 0.24 per cent of participants' 
total pensionable remuneration. The t1vo temporary additional posts at the 
G-3/4 level, -vrhich had not been approved by the Advisory Committee, would 
strengthen the Benefits Unit of the Accounts Section, Hhose workload 1vould increase 
as a result of the introduction of the ne-vr pension adjustment scheme; the 
reclassification of certain posts requested by the Board uas also necessary. His 
delegation therefore proposed that section IV of the amended draft resolution in 
annex II of the report of ACABQ (f\./33/375) should be amended accordingly. 

25. lie noted vrith satisfaction that the Pension Fund's investments in developing 
countries had increased by 33 per cent in one year, but believed that more areas 
for possible investment should be explored, particularly in Africa and Asia; the 
Asian Development Bank, for example, was an excellent financial institution as 1-rell 
as a povrerful instrument for social development. His delegation also >·relearned the 
international diversification of the Fund's investments, 1-ri th 59 per cent of its 
long-term holdings being outside the United States. TI1e Investments Committee 
might also look into the diversification of investment currencies. 

I . .. 



A/C.5/33/SR.41 
Fnglish 
Page 7 

(Hr. Garrido, PhiliPpines) 

26. As a general policy 9 investment should be linked to the world economic outlook. 
When the programme of action on the new international economic order was 
implemented, the world economy should become more stable because of co-operation 
between developed and developing countries. 

AGENDA ITEM 111: REPORT OF THE INTERNATIONAL CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION (continued) 
(A/33/30 and Add.l; A/C.5/33/37) 

27. Mr. THONAS (Trinidad and Tobago) said that he supported the efforts of ICSC 
to co-ordinate the practices of organizations of the United Nations system with 
regard to salaries and .,.rorking conditions. As its report (A/33/30) showed, ICSC 
\vas careful not to be too hasty in making fundamental changes in certain benefits 
and allowances: it tried to subject claims and representations made to it to 
practical application, tested existing conditions against the prevailing 
circumstances before making recommendations for change, and sought to provide just 
and balanced conditions and benefits for all staff memiJers. 

28. The Commission vras right in saying (para. 40) that care must be tal~en lest, 
in reacting to an extraordinary situation, measures w·ere adopted which might later 
prove to create anomalies worse than those they had been intended to correct, as 
had happened in the past. Eve~r effort should be made to correct the problems 
created by currency fluctuations and inflation without resorting too hurriedly to 
flli~damental changes. 

29. The complexity of the United Nations system did not allow· for simplistic 
generalizations in relation to benefits and allowances: in that respect, the task 
of ICSC i-Tas only one aspect of the process of integrating and co-ordinating the 
entire system. Without a rationalization of occupations, a degree of coherence in 
over-all personnel policies and co-ordination of the positions adopted by 
Governments in different United Nations bodies and agencies, the attempt to 
co-ordinate salaries and benefits would risk conflicting with varied practices and 
could serve only as terms of reference. The question of salaries and benefits 
could not, therefore, be viewed in isolation from those other variables. 

30. While expatriot status had to be taken into consideration for certain benefits 
and allowances, it should not be over-emphasized to the extent of placing an 
unreasonable burden on Member States. A close alignment of the benefits and 
allowances of the United Nations system ':rith those of the comparator national 
service ·i-Tas therefore uncalled for. Restoration of the original margin between 
the salaries of United Nations staff and of the United States Civil Service was 
likewise unnecessary; it 1muld be preferable to have a range for that margin rather 
than a fixed percentage. The grading equivalencies bet,;een the United nations 
common system and the United States Civil Service established by ICSC were 
acceptable and would facilitate the comparison of salary scales. 

31. His delegation was satisfied with the methodical approach taken by ICSC in its 
consideration of the possible modification of the post adjustment system, and ~,ras 

pleased to note that the Commission i·rould consider the question of pensionable 
remuneration in co-operation with the United Nations Joint Staff Pension Board. 

I . .. 



1'·./C. 5/33/SR. 41 
English 
Page 8 

U,!r. Thomas, Trinidad and 'Tobago) 

32. His delegation could not, hm-rever, accept the proposed extension of the 
assignment allmvance from five to seven years, since the change vould hamper the 
increased rotation of staff betl-reen duty stations advocated by many Members. The 
issue was not the relative costs of removal of personal effects after five years 
vis-a-vis continued assignment allowances 9 hut the need to pursue a coherent 
personnel policy which vJould reduce e:h'tensions to the absolute minimum; the 
Commission should study the practical side of that question further. 

33. His delegation would accept ICSC's recommendations on seeking to alleviate 
as far as possible the problems arising out of currency fluctuations and inflation. 
The Commission should endeavour to maintain or restore the purchasing power of 
benefits vrhile continuing to exercise s"'tund judgement in order to avoid over-
compensation. -

34. It -v1ould be preferabll? to mrard the end-of-service grant after five years in 
order to bring it intq_ ::tine lvith pensions -,.rhich, under the Regulations of the 
Pension Fund, vere J:)ayable after five years of contribution. The entitlement 
should not be .q;ranted merely ~vhen employment 1vas terminated by the Organization. 
When a staf-f" member left the Ore;anization of his mm free •-rill, there was no 
reason.-why he should not be recompensed for his five years of satisfactory service; 
if he-were forced to stay in the hope of being dismissed in order to secure his 
grant, the result might be to keep on exoendable personnel. He hoped that ICSC 
would revise its recommendation, and Hondered vThether the proposal in question 
conflicted with existing practice in respect of fixed-term vis-a-vis permanent 
contracts. 

35. The question of benefits for post-secondary studies was particularly 
complicated in that not all foreign services paid such benefits. His delegation 
did not oppose the benefit recommended by ICSC, but it did not totally agree •·rith 
either of the suggested limits for entitlement to the benefit - the age of 21 or 
the attainment of the first recognized degree. Since the Commission would be 
giving the question further study, it might consider a formula under which the 
benefit would be paid for four continuous or continual years. 

36. His delegation sympathized with the representation of staff in respect of 
the removal of all conditions and limits regarding the education of disabled 
children. It could not accept, however, that expatriate status should oblige the 
OrGanization to meet all costs for all time for the education of handicapped 
children. It therefore accepted the relevant recon~endation of the Commission, 
but 1muld be prepared to consider further recommendations by it on that question. 

37. His delegation accepted the education travel grant as outlined in 
paragraph 280 of the Commission's report. It could see the justification and 
need for the extension of the education grant to children who were educated in 
third countries. 

I . .. 



A/C.5/33/SR.41 
English 
Pa[';e 9 

(~r. Thomas, Trinidad and Toba~o) 

38. The Commission's observations on the question of the justification for the 
progressive scale of amounts of the repatriation and death grants were thouGht
provoking. His delegation understood the pragmatism behind the Commission's 
recommendation as to the basis on 1-1hich the repatriation grant would be paid, namely 
a declaration by the staff member that he did not intend to reside in the country 
of his last duty station, but such a declaration of intent was not sufficient to 
ensure payment of the grant in the circumstances for which it was intended. If the 
Commission considered it essential to pursue the question, it could explore other 
practical approaches and put forward alternative proposals. 

39. ICSC could not fulfil its mandate in isolation from the larger ob.jective of a 
harmonized and integrated system. It was therefore essential that the legislative 
bodies of the United Nations organizations should co-operate by aligning their 
personnel practices and policies and that ICSC should share the confidence of those 
organizations, which should in turn give due consideration to its recommendations 
and refrain from taking unilateral decisions. Subject to those remarks, his 
delegation was prepared to accept the recommendations of ICSC. 

40. Mr. DAHER (Jordan) commended ICSC on its efforts since its establishment four 
years earlier. Its report (A/33/30) indicated that it had already made a 
significant contribution towards the achievement of better co~ordination among 
United Nations organizations. 

41. With reference to the tHo contradictory opinions expressed recently by the 
United Nations Administrative Tribunal and the ILO Administrative Tribunal on 
General Service salaries in Geneva, his delegation endorsed the suggestion made by 
the representative of Japan that the time might have come for the General Assembly 
to request the Secretary-General and ACC to consider the possibility of having a 
single Administrative Tribunal for the United Nations system as a 1-1hole. That 
,,rould prevent a recurrence of that unhappy situation. 

42. His delegation concurred with the Commission's conclusions on the question of 
grading equivalencies betHeen the United Nations common system anc the United States 
civil service. It Has to be noted that the margin between the comparator national 
civil service and the United Nations common system had narrowed considerably. A 
margin that took account of expatriation and other special features of the 
international civil service should exist" 

Lf3. His delegation likewise accepted the recommendations of the Commission on 
extending eligibility for the education grant for post-secondary studies to 
children of staff members studying in the country of the duty station. At its 
thirty-first session the General Assembly had rejected the Commission's 
recommendation that the ban on the reimbursement of the costs of attendance at a 
university in the country of the staff member's duty station should be removed. 
In resolution 31/141 B, the General Assembly had requested the Commission to 
re-examine the need for an allo-vrance for post-secondary education in countries other 
than the home country of the staff member. The extension of the education grant 

/ ... 



A/C. 5/33/SR. L~l 
English 
Page 10 

(Mr. Daher, Jordan) 

to cover post-secondary education in the country of the duty station was overdue. 
The purpose of the grant was to help staff members to meet the extra costs which 
they incurred for the education of their children as a result of their expatriation~ 
as ICSC stated in paragraph 233 of its report. 

44. His delegation also welcomed the Commission's recommendations regarding the 
extension of the scope of the education grant to provide for the education of 
disabled children, and endorsed the special provisions set out in paragraph 246 of 
the report. 

45. Finally, ICSC should pay special attention to career development, which should 
involve greater mobility of staff between Headquarters and other duty stations. 

46. Mr. ABANKWA (Ghana) said that on the whole the recommendations in the 
Commission 1 s report (A/33/30) should be approved by the General Assembly, since 

·they would help to correct some of the inequities in the United Nations system and 
raise the morale of staff members. 

1~7. His delegation joined other delegations in deploring the action of the 
Governing Body of ILO, which after undertaking to accept as binding the 
Administrative Tribunal's advisory opinion on General Service salaries in Geneva 1 

had gone back on its undertaking. It was hoped that other such anomalies could be 
prevented from developing in the system. His delegation also regretted that ICSC 
had not established grading equivalencies between the United Stat0s civil service 
and the United Nations common system at all levels, as it had been requested to do 
in General Assembly resolution 31/141 B. Even though his delegation found the 
arguments contained in paragraphs 90 and 91 of the Commission's report convincing, 
it still believed that it would have been more logical to extend the study to all 
levels and then explain the apparent differences between the topmost grades in 
the ti-ro services. The General Assembly would then have been able to take a 
decision based on facts and figures. 

48. As to the end-of-service grant, he was sure that if the ICSC recommendation 
was approved, it might remove some of the apprehensions experienced by fixed-term 
employees. The recommendation would have been commendable if its effect was only 
to put officers with fixed-term appointments on a par with their career colleagues, 
but it apparently would give fixed-term employees more favourable treatment. It 
was the permanent career staff of an organization who should be given preferential 
treatment. 

49. The end-of-service grant, as it stood in the ICSC recommendation, gave 
de facto security of tenure to a fixed-term employee once he completed nine years 
of service, without exacting from him any obligation. Such an employee was free 
to leave at the end of his contract, but if the organization decided not to renew 
the contract it would be obliged to pay him an indemnity. 

I . .. 



A/C. 5/ j ~/HR. lt I 
English 
Page 11 

(Mr. Abankwa ~ G!l~na) 

50. 'l'hat was rather unfair, and it would not be surprising if FICSA claimed the 
same treatment for career officers. In 1976 FICSA had proposed the replacement 
of the repatriation grant by two elements, one of which was a grant or indemnity 
payable upon separation to all staff, whether expatriate or not, the amount being 
based on length of service and not differentiated by dependency status; there was 
a noticeable similarity between that grant and the end-of-service grant. The 
approval of the ICSC recommendation would make it difficult for the Fifth Committee 

.. to reject the FICSA proposal, which had been noted for a further study since 1976. 
Such a measure would create a further financial burden for Member States for no 
justifiable reason, since its cost had been estimated at over $2 million. His 
delegation considered that such benefits must be accompanied by reciprocal 
obligations. If the end-of-service grant was to be paid to fixed-term employees, 
the United Nations might as well employ them on a permanent basis. 

51. In addition, it seemed to his delegation that the Commission had acted with 
improper haste on the question of the end-of-service grant, as was evident from 
paragraph 170 of the report, which read: 1'Needles to say, when the causes of the 
problem had been removed, the measures now proposed by the Commission would no 
longer be required and could be dispensed with. 1' It vras not clear why the 
Commission had not decided to advance the study mentioned in paragraph 168, 
because the more logical course was surely to remove once and for all the causes 
of the disabilities rather than to provide costly palliatives. 

52. The Commission seemed to be of the view that a fixed-term appointee acquired 
an expectation of automatic renewal after his appointment had been renewed two or 
three times. That argument was flawed. The renewal of a fixed-term appointment 
was designed to remind the fixed-term appointee that he was not entitled to the 
legal security of a permanent appointment. He knew when his contract began and 
when it ended and could not therefore be caught unawares. 

53. The differences between national practices and the practice in the United 
Nations system in relation to the use of temporary personnel should be eliminated, 
since they were frequently unjustified. That was, in any case, one of the tasks 
of the Commission but it seemed that the recommendation, if adopted, would push 
the administration in the wrong direction. It was true that there were problems 
in that area; the Commission should, therefore, continue the study it was making, 
under article 14 of its statute, on the relative roles of permanent and fixed-term 
employment, and he formally proposed that the recommendation should be resubmitted, 
if at that point it was found to be still justifiable, with the conclusions of that 
study. Lastly, it was to be regretted that ICSC had made no recommendation 
concerning career development and personnel management, which were the real 
basis of the problem. 

54. \rJith regard to the upper limit of eligibility for the education grant, the 
Commission had rightly concluded, in paracraph 234 of its report, that the 
replacement of an age limit by the formula "up to the end of the fourth year of 
post-secondary studies or the award of the first recognized degree, whichever is 

/ ... 



A/C.5/33/SR.4l 
English 
Page 12 

(Mr. Abankwa, Ghana) 

the earlier" would be the most logical and realistic solution. Hmvever, it had been 
decided that further studies should be undertnJ;:en and that in the meantime the 
existing age limit of 21 years should stand. 

55. The recommendation discriminated ae;ainst the developing countries, where 
most students in those countries did not acquire their first recornized derree 
by that age. If provision was made for the age limit to be raised for the purpose 
of military service, there could be no reason for not making provision for persons 
who, for reasons of economic under-development, were not able to complete their 
university education before reaching the age limit. The decision contained in 
paragraph 234 was a clear contradiction of what many members believed, and it was 
difficult to accept the postponement of the implementation of the most logical and 
realistic solution. His delegation hoped that the study to be undertaken would lead 
to the adoption of the solution recommended by rcsc ann that all United N:J.tioGS 
staff would soon benefit from that measure. 

56. Hr. PEDERSEN (Canada) observed that ICSC had a very difficult task, not only 
because it had to cope -vrith inside and outside pressures but because, in 
metaphorical terms, it had not only to try to keep the crew from mutiny but also to 
keep the boat from sinkinc;. In that respect, the action taken by ILO with regard to 
General Service salaries in Geneva could only be decried. It was to be hoped that 
when ICSC undertook its revie-vr of General Service sal<'tries, in two years' time, 
those of ILO would be brought into line with the others. 

57. The present Droblem was due to the existence of a bicephalous judicial system 
in the United Nations family. The United Nations Administrative Tribunal dealt >vith 
all disputes relating to pensions and questions concerning the United Nations, ICAO 
and IMCO; the ILO Tribunal, on the other hand, was. responsible for dealing with 
disputes in the other agencies. It would therefore be appropriate to carry out a 
study of the present judicial system and its performance, and particularly its 
strengths and weaknesses, and to examine the need for possible reform. He 
understood thFtt the Consultative Comrni ttee on Administrative Questions had already 
been asked to study the matter. 

58. ICSC considered that the salary system had responded well to the strains of 
currency instability and hi.sh inflation rates. His dele.sation was not quite so 
sanguine, and shared the concern expressed by the delegations of the Federal 
Republic of Germany and Belc;ium about the effectiveness of the post adjustment 
system. 'I'he fact was that the real income and purchasing povrer of international 
civil servants had been seriously distorted, and that had further exacerbated the 
even more difficult question of pensionable remuneration. Clearly it wotlid not be 
easy to find a solution, but it was to be hoped that ICSC would submit constructive 
proposals for consideration at the thirty--fourth session of the General Assembly. 

59. With regard to salary comparisons between the United Nations common system and 
the United States Civil Service, his dele~ation believed that the margin of 
9 per cent between those salaries was more than adequate. In fact, United Nations 
professionals seem to be better off than their United States counterparts. While 

I . .. 



A/C.5/33/SR.41 
English 
Page 13 

(Hr. Pedersen, Canada) 

his delegation could accept the equivalences of grades described in paragraph 92 of 
the report, it was not convinced that comparisons could not be made with respect to 
the salaries of D-2 staff and Assistant Secretaries-General. 

/ 

60. 'I'he Commission's other recommendations should patch some of the leaks in the 
boat, but that patchwork would cost the United Nations system at least $5 million. 
Consequently, his delegation had doubts about some of the proposals put forward., 
It could not, for exa~ple, accept the recommendation to introduce an end-of-service 
grant. It could not be claimed that individuals on fixed-term contracts expected 
to be employed permanently or that they were being misled by their employers. The 
situation of the two types of employees was not comparable. What should be 
examined was the more general question of permanent and fixed-term appointments, 
and the examination should be made on the basis of the conclusions in the ICSC 
study to be submitted at the thirty-fifth session of the General Assembly. To 
approve the grant before then would be putting the cart before the horse. 

61. vTith regard to the cumulation of entitlements, his delegation disagreed with 
ICSC that to impose a ceiling on the aggregate amount of a staff member's 
entitlenents would be to cast doubt on the intrinsic justification for each of them. 
vTithout denying the justification for the individual benefits, it could be 
m~intained that, in the aggregate, sums were excessive, and it would seem 
reasonable to impose a ceilinG, equivalent, for example to 18 months' salary. 

62. His delegation agreed with ICSC that the repatriation grant should not be paid 
to a staff member who remained in the country of his last duty station. However, a 
declaration signed by the staff member did not seem a sufficient guarantee against 
abuse. His delegation did not think that the period of payment of the assignment 
allowance should be extended from five to seven years. However, it could accept 
the other recommendations made by ICSC in respect of the children's allowance, 
death grant, education grant and special provision for disabled children. 

63. ~!Jr. Harville (Barbados) took the Chnir. 

64. l·1r. KEMAL (Pakistan) noted that ICSC's fourth report, which was before the 
Committee, contained an analysis of the effects of currency instability on the 
salary system of the United Nations. It also contained a series of recommendations 
regarding benefits payable to staff members. On the whole, his delegation was 
prepared to view those recommendations sympathetically, not only because their cost 
did not seem excessive but also because it believed the proposals to be reasonable 
and just. He trusted in the technical competence of ICSC and was prepared to 
a.ccept any consensus reached on the recommendations. 

65. \-lith regard to the salary differentials between the United Nations 
Professional Staff and United States Civil Servants, ICSC had made laborious 
comparisons bet"reen the two which should indicate that the total rerJ.Uneration paid 
to United Nations staff members was in line with that of United States Civil 
Servants. In that respect, he ac:reed with the representative of Trinidad and 
Tobago that such comparisons should be for purposes of reference only. 

I . .. 



A/C. 5/33/SR .1>1 
English 
Page 14 

(Mr. Kemal, Pakistan) 

66. His delegation was in sympathy with ICSC's recommendations concerning 
General S.ervice salaries in Paris and could not support the resistance to them. 
In that connexion, a problem had arisen as a result of the decision of ILO's 
Administrative Tribunal concerning General Service salaries in Geneva. ILO had 
just undergone a serious financial crisis due to the withdrawal of its major 
contributor; his delegation had been confident that ILO would find ways of 
reconciling the Tribunal's decision with the requirements of the common system. 
That hope had not yet been realized and the Director-General of ILO had negotiated 
an agreement with the staff which departed from the recommendations made by the 
General Assembly at its thirty-first session and which was the cause of inequalities 
among the Geneva staff. 

67. However, there was a problem that Member States and staff considered to be 
more important, namely, that of the effects of monetary instability on the 
functioning of the salary system and pension scheme. His delegation endorsed the 
view expressed by the International Civil Service Commission that the salary system 
had performed remarkably well in circQmstances of unforeseen strain and complexity. 
However, there were still problems to resolve. 

68. In that connexion, his delegation felt that the salaries paid to United Nations 
staff members at certain important duty stations, particularly in the socialist 
coun~ries, were too low in comparison with those paid elsewhere, for example, in 
Western Europe and certain African countries. The post-adjustment system was based 
on extremely complex calculations and it was surprising that it should have resulted 
in such disparities between various duty stations. It was true that at certain 
duty stations there were few international civil servants and it was difficult 
to obtain precise data taking an altogether inadequate sampling as a basis. 
The Commission should consider that question and it would perhaps be appropriate 
to set up an ad hoc working group for that purpose. 

69. In addition, the per diem rates paid by the Organization at certain duty 
stations should be revised in order to avoid difficulties. Twice a year the 
Monthly Bulletin of Statistics published a very useful table of the expenditure 
of United Nations staff members around the world. It would be desirable for that 
table to be published more frequently, for example, on a quarterly basis; that 
would not entail any great costs since the Bulletin was published on a monthly 
basis anyway. The time lag in publication of that table should also be 
reduced. 

10. His delegation noted with satisfaction that the ICSC would study the extremely 
complex question of pensionable remuneration during its next session. It seemed 
that a number of delegations would have liked the ICSC to have considered the 
questions of career development, job classification and recruitment policies. In 
the absence of recommendations on those questions the Committee would have to 
tackle that important task itself, and he wondered what effect the results of that 
exercise would have on the work of ICSC. 

I ... 



71. Mr. Kobina Sekyi (Ghana) resumed the Chair. 

A/C.5/33/SR.41 
English 
Page 15 

AGENDA ITEN 100: PROGRAlvlME BUDGET FOR THE BIENNIUH 1978-1979 (_~ontinued) 

Revised estimates under section 26 B and C: Alteration, improvements and major 
maintenance of premises, United Nations Office at Geneva (continued) (A/C.5/33/33; 
A/33/7/Add.l2) . 

72. Hr. SCHMIDT (Federal Republic of Germany) thought that, for the time being, 
the Committee •ras not required to discuss principles and decide vrhether 
accommodation should be provided for high-level United Nations officials other 
than the Secretary-General. That question would arise when the term of office of 
the Director-General of the United Nations Office at Geneva expired. By approving 
an appropriation for the renovation of the villa "Les Feuillantines" at its last 
session, the General Assembly had by implication decided that the villa should be 
put at the disposal of the Director-General. It 1vas important to determine the 
best way of using the two villas owned by the Organization at Geneva. Since the 
villa "La Fenetre" was unsuitable for office use, it might as well be turned 
into a residence since there was sufficient office space at Geneva. With regard 
to the villa "Les Feuillantines 11

, he endorsed the view of the Advisory Committee 
that the possible uses had not been ~iven close enough consideration for an 
informed decision to be taken. He felt that if the Director-General took up 
residence in the villa "La Fenetre", the rent should be revised, and he would 
like the Secretary-General to make a proposal on that question to the 
General Assembly at its next session. 

73. To enable the Committee to take a prompt decision on that question, he formally 
proposed that a compromise solution should be adopted and that the Committee 
recommend that the General Assembly should adopt - without prejudice to the 
principle of whether officials of the United Nations, other than the 
Secretary-General, should be provided with accommodation - the plan proposed by the 
Secretary-General in document A/C.5/33/33, providing for use of the villa 
"La Fenetre" as the residence of the Director-General of the United Nations Office 
at Geneva, and request the Secretary-General to consider other possible uses for 
the villa "Les Feuillantines 1

' and submit a rq:ort at the thirty-fourth session. 

74. Mr. AKASHI (Japan) said that he supported the recommendations of the Advisory 
Committee for a number of reasons. Firstly, he did not feel that it was in the 
interests of the Organization to turn the villa "La FeEc~re" into a residence, 
because it was only by postponing other important work that the estimated cost of 
the work ($32,200) could be financed within budget appropriations already approved. 
Moreover, he feared that conversion of the villa "La Fenetre" would entail further 
costs in the future. 

75. Secondly, the future needs of the United Nations Office at Geneva with regard 
to office space

2
were not known, and the available space at the villa "La Fenetre," 

namely, 1,106 m , might prove useful. Thirdly, with regard to the question of 
principle involved, he pointed out that only the Secretary-General was entitled to 
rent-free accommodation, and, in his view, there was no reason to make an exception 

/ ... 



A/C.5/33/SR.41 
English 
Page 16 

(Mr. Akashi, JapaQ) 

to that rule. As for representational activities, there was appropriate space at 
the Palais des Nations at Geneva that should be used instead of the residence of 
the Director-General. 

76. With regard to the question of security, he wondered why that question arose 
only in the case of the Director-General. Moreover, in view of the efficiency of 
the Swiss police, there should be no security Froblem. Lastly, as far as he 
himself had been able to judge, although the villa 11Les Feuillantines" was located 
in an area that was noisy, because of heavy road traffic, the noise level inside 
the villa did not appear to be excessive. 

77. He therefore felt that the needs of the Organization should be considered 
paramount. In the absence of criteria concerning the possibility of providing 
accommodation for high-level officials, it was not easy to take a decision. 
However, practice since 1960 should be taken into account and, if the 
Director-General wished to reside in the villa "Les Feuillantines, 11 he should be 
free to do so, provided that he paid a reasonable rent. His delegation was 
prepared to approve the amount of $107,800 requested for the renovation of that 
villa, but not the amount requested for converting the villa uLa Fenetre 11 into a 
residence. 

78. Mr. TALIEH (Iran) said that in his opinion the main question 1-1as to determine 
how best to use the sum of $81,000 which had already been made available for 
renovation of the villa "Les Feuillantines". In view of the reasons given by the 
Secretary--General in his report (A/C.5/33/33), he felt that it would be better to 
spend the money on renovating the villa "La Fenetre", which was situated in the 
grounds of the Palais des Nations and which had originally been designed as a 
residence. Since the present residence was in a ve~J noisy area near a busy 
thoroughfare, he supported the Secretary-General's proposal to convert the villa 
"La Fenetre" into a residence. 

79. Hith regard to the question of principle raised by the Advisory Committee, he 
did not think that the Fifth Committee had to consider that question, since by 
approving the appropriation for the renovation of the villa nLes Feuillantines", 
the General Assembly had implicitly accepted the idea that accommodation should be 
made available to the Director-General. With regard to the rent, he thouf,ht that 
when the nev residence was remodelled, the rent would have to be raised 1-1ithin 
reasonable proportions. As for the Secretary-General's recommendation that the 
villa 11Les Feuillantines" should be put up for sale, he shared the view of the 
Advisory Co~~ittee that the General Assembly should have additional information. 
In conclusion, he fully agreed with the proposal made by the representative of the 
Federal Republic of Germany, which seemed to afford the best means of promptly 
settling that question, whose consideration should not be unduly prolonged since it 
did not have any financial implications at the present time. 

80. Mr. ANDERSSON (Sweden) supportecl. the vieus and principles contained in the 
report of the Advisory Committee (A/33/7/Add.l2). 

I . .. 



A/C.5/33/SR.41 
English 
Page 17 

81. Mr. ABANKWA (Ghana) said that, in any case, the Director-General of the 
United Nations Office at Genevrt vrould continue to reside in a villa belonging 
to the Organization, regardless of the recommendation the General Assembly adopted, 
and therefore taking no cognizance of the question of principle raised by the 
Advisory Committee. In that situation, his delegation believed that the 
Fift!'l Committee should consider the long-term cost effects which the tvro 
alterna_tives would involve for the Member States. \-lith regard to the villa 
"La Fenetre 11

, because of its location the United Nations had no choice but to 
keep and maintain it vrhether it was used or not. Since it had originally been 
designed as a residence, it could only be used for makeshift office space, 
which >vould be vacated as soon as the occupants found more suitable accomnodation. 
It could thus be foreseen that each new occupant vrould ask for funds to renovate 
the villa to suit its own purposes and, moreover, that the villa would not be 
occupied permanently. For those reasons, his delegation was convinced that the 
United Nations would benefit more by utilizing the villa 11La Fenetre" as a 
residence and that, as the representative of the Secretary-General in Geneva) 
the Director-General should be able to reside there at an appropriate rental. 

82. In view of the Advisory Committee's recommendation against an immediate 
sale, in paragraph 10 of its report (A/33/7/Add.l2) and the information provided 
by the delegate of Tunisia on property values in Geneva, he wondered whether it 
would be in the interests of the Organization to offer the villa 11 Les Feuillantines" 
for sale at the present time. He therefore ·Hholeheartedly surrcrted the compromise 
proposal submitted by the representative of the Federal Republic of Germany. 

83. Mr. EL-AYADHI (Tunisia) said that the time spent on considering that question 
far exceeded the importance of the subject and fully agreed with the proposal of 
the Federal Republic of Germany. 

84. Mr. SAFRONCHUK (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) suggested that the 
official text of the proposal made by the representative of the Federal Republic 
of Germany should be made available to the members of the Fifth Committee so that 
they could form an opinion on the matter in the light of the facts. 

85. If the amount of rent paid by the Director-General could cover the costs of 
maintaining the villa, the Soviet delegation would be prepared to accept the 
proposal of the Secretary-General. Besides 9 it agreed with the Advisory Committee 
that the present situation was not normal and constituted, to some extent, a 
discriminatory practice in respect of certain high-level officials. The main 
question was to find out whether the available prer,lises w·ere being suitably 
utilized. If the villa "Les Feuillantines" was not to be occupied, it should be 
.)ffered for sale. As for the villa "La Fenetre 11

, it should be used by 
Jnited Nations agencies, on the understanding that the Director-General could 
~eside there until he had found another residence. The main consideration was that 
~he premises should not remain unoccupied. He would like to have information not 
Jnly on the amount of rent, but also on the cost of repairs and maintenance, and 
the way in which those costs could be financed within the limits of the 
appropriations already available. 

I ... 



A/C.5/33/SR.4l 
English 
Page 18 

86. Mr. HAQUE (Bangladesh), Mr. GARRIDO (Philippines) and Mr. LAHLOU (Morocco) 
said that they supported the proposal submitted by the representative of the 
Federal Republic of Germany. 

87. The C}~I~~J said that the official text of the proposal by the representative 
of the Federal Republic of Germany would be made available to the members of the 
Fifth Committee so that they could tal~e a decision at the next meeting. 

The meetin~ rose at 1.20 p.m. 


